
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
June 2, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board and  
   Acting General Manager 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:35 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar. Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following items 
were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 5, 2016 Regular Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.) 
None. 


 1







 2


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:36 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:36 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Continuation of Drought Emergency Measures.  


The Acting GM provided an overview of this item.  Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue made 
additional comments.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
V-B. (6:40 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-06, Ordering an Election to be Held 


and Requesting Consolidation with the November 8, 2016, General District 
Election.  The Acting GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  
Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 16-06, Ordering an Election to be 
Held and Requesting Consolidation with the November 8, 2016 General District Election.  
Director Holmer seconded.  Further discussion ensued.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (6:55 p.m.) 
 
The Acting General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. 2017 CIP 
2. El Bonita Well Field Flood Inundation 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(6:58 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (6:58 p.m.) 
 
1. Continuation of drought emergency measures 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:36 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (6:55 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(6:58 p.m.)



		VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (6:58 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






 
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


July 7, 2016, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 2, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Voting for Richard Holmer for LAFCO 
 
E. Discussion/Action re CSDA Bay Area Network Board Election 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-07, Discontinuing Implementation of Stage 1 


of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (implemented August 7, 2014, and 
revised May 7, 2015)(Est. time 20 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re El Bonita Wellfield 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Progress on USDA Loan/Bond; Approval of Resolution 16-


08 Finding the 2017 CIP Exempt from CEQA  (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2015-16 (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
  
 A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  


 Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(3) – Receipt of written communication 
from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation. One potential case. 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 7, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: LAFCO BOARD VOTE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the General Manager to submit to LAFCO the 
Board's vote for Richard Holmer for Class II independent special district position on the 
LAFCO Board.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the May Board meeting, the Board nominated Richard Holmer for the vacancy of the 
position representing Class II independent special districts for the term ending in May 
2018.  Richard is one of  five nominees for the position.  The votes are due by July 29, 
2016.  Upon approval of this agenda item, staff will send in the District's vote.  
Information about the election is attached.   

















































































































		Item III-D - LAFCO Election

		Item III-D.1 - LAFCO election packet






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-E 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 7, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: CSDA BOARD VOTE FOR SEAT B IN THE BAY AREA NETWORK 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the General Manager to submit to California Special 
Districts Association (CSDA) the District's vote for John Carapiet for Seat B of the Bay 
Area Network. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CSDA has six networks with each network having 3 seats on the Board.  The District is 
in the Bay Area Network.  The Seat B term ends in 2019.  Information about this 
election is attached.   
 
I recommend that the District vote for John Carapiet.  This recommendation is based on 
Mr. Carapiet representing a Marin County special district (closer than the other 
candidate) and representing a water-related district (the other candidate represents a 
mosquito abatement district).   I don't know either candidate personally nor do I have 
any awareness of the Districts they represent.   
 

























		Item III-E - CSDA Election

		Item III-E.1 - CSDA election packet






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 7, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 16-07 RESCINDING STAGE 1 OF 
DISTRICT WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 16-07  rescinding Stage 1 of the District's 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan, based on the California State Water Resources 
Control Board (State Board) allowance for self-certification of local water supplies, the 
region's adequate rainfall during the past rain season, and adequate storage in regional 
reservoirs to support minimum flows in the Russian River.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  May result in a small increase in revenue from increased water use.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the August 7, 2014 Board meeting the District Board passed Resolution 14-14 
which implemented the then current State Board regulations requiring the District to 
enact the appropriate level of its Water Shortage Contingency Plan to achieve a 20% 
reduction in water production compared to the same month in 2013 and implement 
certain mandatory water conservation measures.  The State Board resolution and 
attached regulations prohibited the following actions: 


1. The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk.  
2. Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes 


runoff to adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, 
roadways, parking lots or structures.  


3. Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, unless the 
hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle.  


4. Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the 
water is recirculated. 


  
Resolution 14-14 put the District into Stage 1 of the Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan and the response by District customers resulted in a production reduction of 
approximately 14% through March 2015.   


In March and April of 2015, the State took several actions that extended its drought 
regulations.  The State Board reaffirmed the water use restrictions to achieve 20% 
reductions in water use by urban water suppliers in March, and in early April 
Governor Brown increased the reduction to 25% but stated the reduction program 
should recognize programs that have been doing water conservation all along.  In 







Rescinding Stage 1 of Water Shortage Contingency Plan 2  
July 7, 2016 


the 2015 version of the State Board regulations, the District was required to reduce 
its water production by 16% compared to 2013.  The amended State Board 
regulations also included some new water use restrictions: 


5. Urban water suppliers must limit the number of days per week that customers can 
irrigate outdoors.  


6. Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following 
measurable precipitation was prohibited. 


7. Water agencies were required to notify customers when they are aware of leaks 
that are within the customer’s control. 


8. Restaurants and other food service establishments could only serve water to 
customers on request; and 


9. Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of choosing 
not to have towels and linens laundered daily and prominently display notice of 
this option.  


 


On May 7, 2015 the District Board approved Resolution 15-10 which  continued 
Stage 1 and revised it to conform to the amended State Board regulations.  This 
Resolution included the additional State Board restrictions and specifically restricted 
outside watering to 3 days per week.  During this period District customers have 
responded well and have reduced their water use by approximately 22% compared 
to the same months in 2013.   


This past winter the precipitation that fell in most of California was enough to fill 
many reservoirs and that has taken off the edge of the emergency aspect of the 
Statewide drought, although one can't say the drought is over Statewide and many 
localities still are in very serious situations.  However, the State Board has 
recognized that having a Statewide target is not meaningful for many water 
suppliers.  In response to the current situation, the State Board has continued the 
drought emergency but has amended its regulations to allow large urban water 
suppliers (and the District falls into this category) to self-certify the level of available 
water supply they have assuming three additional dry years, and the level of 
conservation necessary to assure adequate supply over that time period.  Water 
suppliers that can demonstrate that they will not have a shortfall in their supplies 
after three additional dry years do not need to meet a conservation target.   


The District falls into this category.  We have gone through this process and have 
successfully demonstrated that our water supply for the next 3 years is more than 
sufficient without a mandatory water use reduction target.  This self-certification is 
based on the following: 


 The District receives its water supply from underflow of the Russian River via 
the El Bonita and Monte Rio well fields. 


 Summer is the critical period for having enough flow in the River for the 
District's water supply needs. 


 Minimum summer flow is 70 cubic feet per second (cfs), according to the 
Biological Opinion for endangered salmonid species in the Russian River. 


 The Sonoma County Water Agency has self-certified its wholesale water 
supply for its contractors which means SCWA can make releases to meet the 
required minimum flows. 







Rescinding Stage 1 of Water Shortage Contingency Plan 3  
July 7, 2016 


 District maximum pumping in the summer is 2 cfs and any relatively small 
increase or decrease  (for example, 20% decrease) in that amount would not 
be measurable compared to the 70 cfs minimum flow.   


While the State Board has allowed self-certification, the State  still requires the 
enforcement of certain restrictions through its emergency regulations.  Those 
include all the ones listed above, except number 5.  The continued restrictions are 
mostly within the general conservation practices, drought or no drought, of the 
District, and do not need formal implementation of a water shortage contingency 
plan. 


Resolution 16-07 has been crafted to rescind implementation of the State 1 
condition but recognize that certain water use restrictions required by the State 
Board are still in place.  These restrictions will remain in place until January 2017 
unless rescinded by the State before then (unlikely because of the timing with the 
precipitation season; we need snow and rain statewide or continued because the 
needed precipitation is not happening.   


Observations: 


 District customers are to be commended for their exemplary performance 
during the Stage 1 period.  Water use reductions exceeded the State targets, 
but more importantly there was great cooperation by District customers in 
complying with the State required restrictions.  Staff had very few instances 
of needing to get customers to comply with the restrictions and in all 
situations I can remember it only took one call or visit.   


 Because of the District's situation of pumping from the underflow of the 
Russian River, there is no conceivable drought situation that would actually 
cause water supply problems for the District.  However, there are conceivable 
drought situations that would cause water supply issues for the region, and 
the District should participate in the regional solutions for those issues which 
would likely include water conservation efforts aiming for a target reduction in 
water use.   


 There are other possible water shortage situations that are real for the District 
- earthquakes which damage District supply lines and other facilities, 
contamination of the River from a variety of sources, and other situations.  
We need to be prepared for these too.   


 The District should use this experience to improve or modify the District's 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Plan) which is included in the District's 
Urban Water Management Plan.  For example, the current Plan does not 
anticipate the State requiring a certain conservation target including certain 
mandatory water use restrictions.  We now know this should be provided for 
in the Plan. 


 For most places in California the drought is not over even if the conservation 
effort has been toned down.  For the Russian River area, we are still in a 
period of lower than average rainfall, but whether a regional conservation 
program is needed is a year to year thing.  We're waiting on revisions to 
Decision 1610 which may add clarity to long-term reservoir operations and 
flow regimes that can get us off the year to year approach.    


 The State Board has taken this current approach because it recognizes - it got 
lots of feedback on this issue - that having unnecessary restrictions in place 







Rescinding Stage 1 of Water Shortage Contingency Plan 4  
July 7, 2016 


was like crying wolf - when we need assistance from our customers in 
meeting water supply demand, our customers need to know it's for real.   


 


 







Resolution 16-07 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT RESCINDING 


RESOLUTION 15-10 IMPLEMENTING STAGE 1 OF ITS WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY 


PLAN  
 


WHEREAS, the California State Water Resources Board (State Board) adopted a resolution calling for 
an overall 20% reduction in statewide water use and enacting certain outside watering restrictions in 
July 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, at its August 7, 2014 meeting the District Board adopted Resolution 14-14 which 
complied with the State Board Drought Emergency Water Conservation Regulations (Regulations) and 
District customers responded with an overall reduction of 14% in water production; and 
 
WHEREAS, in May 2015 the State Board adopted a new resolution calling for an overall 25% general 
reduction in statewide water use and amending its Regulations to add certain additional water use 
restrictions, and specifically require the District to achieve a 16% reduction target based on 2013 
water production; and 
 
WHEREAS, in response, the District adopted Resolution 15-10, implementing Stage 1 of its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and included the required mandatory restrictions in the Stage 1 
proclamation; and 
 
WHEREAS, this past winter, precipitation in the region has replenished Russian River reservoirs and 
generally statewide water supplies are much better than one year ago; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State Board has amended its Regulations to allow urban water suppliers such as the 
District to self-certify their water supplies, assuming three additional dry years, to determine what level 
of local water use reduction is needed to meet supply over that time period ; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has gone through the self certification process and determined that a water 
use reduction target is not needed to meet local supply over the next three years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State Board has extended its Regulations through the end of January 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State Board has continued the following restrictions: 
 


1. The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk is prohibited.  
2. Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff to 


adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, 
parking lots or structures is prohibited.  


3. Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, unless the 
hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle is prohibited.  


4. Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is 
recirculated, is prohibited. 







Resolution 16-07 Stage I Water Shortage Contingency Plan Rescission  2 
July 7, 2016 
 


5. Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following measurable 
precipitation is prohibited. 


6. Water agencies are required to notify customers when they are aware of leaks that 
are within the customer’s control. 


7. Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to customers 
on request; and 


8. Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of choosing not to 
have towels and linens laundered daily and prominently display notice of this option.  
 


 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT THAT 
 
1.  Resolution 15-10 implementing Stage 1 of the District's Water Shortage Contingency Plan is 
rescinded.  
 
2.  The following water uses continue to be prohibited by the District while the Statewide Drought 
Emergency continues or until these restrictions are modified by the State Board: 
 


 The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk.  
 Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff to adjacent 


property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking lots or 
structures.  


 Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, unless the hose is fitted 
with a shut-off nozzle.  


 Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is recirculated. 
Recycled water is not mandated, but encouraged for fountain use. 


 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following measurable 
precipitation. 


 
3.  These restrictions may be waived by the General Manager where necessary to address an 
immediate health and safety need or to comply with a term or condition in a permit 
issued by a State or federal agency.  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and regularly 
adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, 
Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 7, 2016, by the following vote. 


 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
  
    


  
  
   
 


       







Resolution 16-07 Stage I Water Shortage Contingency Plan Rescission  3 
July 7, 2016 
 


 
      ______________________________ 
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
2675016.1 
 





		Item V-A - Revision of Stage I Water Shortage

		Item V-A.1 - Res 16-07 - Rescission of Stage I Water Shortage.doc






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : July 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE EL BONITA WELL FIELD 
INUNDATION PREPARATIONS  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager  
regarding meeting with Division of Drinking Water staff on flooding impacts on the El 
Bonita Well Field and the Guerneville Water Supply System.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The El Bonita Well Field is at a relatively low level near the Russian River.  It is the 
source of water for the Guerneville Water Supply System of Sweetwater Springs Water 
District.  When the River water elevation gets to 29 feet the well field starts to become 
inundated.  Flood stage for the Russian River at Guerneville is officially at 32 feet 
elevation.  The near flooding in March raised an issue that is concerning to staff - we 
learned in preparation for anticipated flooding of the El Bonita Well Field that the State 
Division of Drinking Water would expect the District to issue boil water notices if the 
wells at that location need to be operated while under water.  We had thought that we 
had addressed that issue to the State's satisfaction (the last large inundation and boil 
water notice was in 2006 and was due to flood water infiltrating the raw water line 
because of a leak in the raw water line from the wells) but we learned during this last 
event we had not.   
 
We had a meeting with State staff on April 28, 2016, to discuss this matter. The 
State staffs' concern is  that they are concerned that flood waters could contaminate 
the pumped water by negative pressures somewhere along the piping that is under 
the flood waters.  Our position is that District water is continually monitored for 
turbidity which should show increased turbidity and that we have a plan for 
addressing this situation, that boil water notices are a hardship for everyone, if not 
needed, and we want to find out what we can do to satisfy the Division of Drinking 
Water staff so that boil water notices are only used when needed.    At the end of 
that meeting we agreed that District staff would work on solutions.  We offered to 
get our well maintenance people involved which State staff stated was a good idea.   
 
Since that meeting staff have been looking at alternatives and have gotten our well 
maintenance consultants involved.  Ron Foster, owner of Ground Water Well and 
Pump has been working on a letter to the Division of Drinking Water to state his 
opinion of what we are doing provides safe water during inundations.  This letter is 
in the process of being sent to the Division of Drinking Water.  Mr. Foster believes, 







El Bonita Well Field Flooding   2   
July 7, 2016 
                                                                 


 


based on years of high-level work, that our operation provides safe water during 
inundations.   
 
Other alternatives that District staff are looking into include: 
 
Raising the well heads.  This is similar to what is done in some vineyards.  It may 
not satisfy the Division of Drinking water staff because the plumbing would still be 
exposed to inundation and their concern appears to be infiltration of contaminate 
water at joints - there would still be some exposed to contaminated water.   
 
Raising the vaults and satisfactorily waterproof them.  This proposal would raise the 
vaults 3-4 feet in preparation of a flood event.  Floods higher than 36-37 feet would 
inundate the vaults and may require boil water notices, but those are less frequent 
and also involve other major disruptions within the service area.   Boil water notices 
in these situations appear to be more acceptable and may be required in any event 
because of the other disruptions - loss of power, contaminated water infiltration in 
other locations.    
 
Our next step is a meeting with Ron Foster and Division of Drinking Water staff.  
After that we will have a much better idea on how to proceed.   
 
 
     
 
 





		Meeting Date : July 7, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : July 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING PROGRESS WITH A POSSIBLE 
LOAN/BOND WITH USDA AND APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 16-08 FINDING THE 2017 
CIP IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
the progress with the  bond/grant from the U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA) to fund the 2017 CIP, provide direction to staff, and approve 
Resolution 16-08 which finds the 2017 CIP is exempt from CEQA.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District is seeking funding through USDA for the FY17 CIP which is replacement of 
approximately 6,800 ft of existing main and 75 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive 
and River Rd on river side of the road. The District has hired Coastland Engineering to 
prepare a Preliminary Engineering Report and Environmental Report which are required 
elements of the USDA loan/bond process.     
 
These reports are near completion.  If we get them prior to the July 7 meeting we 
transmit them to you.  As part of the USDA process, USDA is requiring the District to 
complete the CEQA process prior to submitting the application for funding.  Typically 
this finding is done during award of contract but we will follow the direction of USDA so 
that we can get the funding process moving again.   
 
The 2017 CIP is replacement of existing water main and services and will result in 
negligible or no expansion of capacity, thus the Project is exempt from environmental review, 
pursuant to CEQA and  the CEQA Guidelines, section 15301(b) and 15302(c.  Resolution 16-08 
makes this finding and we hope it satisfies USDA.   







Resolution No. 16-08 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT FINDING THE 2017 CIP IS EXEMPT FROM 


CEQA 
 


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) is undertaking its 2017 
Capital Improvement Project (Project) which is replacement of approximately 
6,800 ft of existing main and 75 services on Old River Rd at Morningside east 
to the eastern section of Foothill Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill 
Drive and River Rd on river side of the road; and 
 


WHEREAS, the District has engaged Coastland Engineering and its 
subcontractor WRA, Inc., to do an environmental investigation of the Project; and  


 
 WHEREAS, Coastland and WRA have done a Preliminary Engineering Report 
and Environmental Report on the Project and shared that information with the District; 
and 
 


WHEREAS, the Project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 
facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity, thus the Project is 
exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 
15302(c). 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby finds that the 2017 CIP is exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of 
Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 15301(b) and 15302(c) because it  involves 
the replacement or reconstruction of existing facilities and will result in negligible or no 
expansion of capacity. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 7, 
2016, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 





		Item V-C -  USDA Loan Progress, Notice of Exemption for 2017 CIP

		Meeting Date : July 7, 2016 



		Item V-C.1. Resolution 16-08 2017 CIP Exemption






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2015 - 2016 ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2015-2016 
Annual Review. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District does an annual review each year at about this time of the year.  This is the 
fourth year that we are using this format, and, as before, it is still a work in progress 
and comments and suggestions are welcome.  Periodic review of District activities is a 
good check on what we are doing and with Board concurrence, we will continue the 
practice.     
 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2015-2016 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2016 Achievements:   


 Sixth year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; Fourth Year of 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge.   


 Reserve Policy met by FY 2016 Budget. 
 Drought water use restrictions resulted in lower water sales and 


revenues; budget can absorb this.     
 
FY 2017 Projections: 


 Investigate/monitor need for rate increase in May 2017, effective July 
2017.  Longer term impact of reduced water sales unknown; we may 
have a new normal on water sales (lower) and may need to adjust to 
this, $500,000 target for CIP funding may need to wait until State 
Loans paid off.  


 Review financial planning model to ensure it is meeting current 
financial planning needs; revise where appropriate.   


 Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2016 Budget.   
 


GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
FY 2016 Achievements: 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2015-2016  2 
 


 Compliance with California Division of Drinking Water (formerly 
Department of Public Health (DPH)) regulations achieved.  Annual 
report submitted according to schedule.   


 Stage I of Water Shortage Contingency Plan adopted in August 2014 in 
response to State Water Board direction; revised in May 2015 again in 
response to State Water Board direction.  District has done better than 
targets.  Stage I may be rescinded at the July 2016 meeting.  It was a 
busy year with the drought with reporting to the State Board on 
monthly progress and self-certification process in June. 


 2016 CIP(Canyon One Road, Rio Nido)completed; NOC in April 2016. 
 Implementation of 2016-2023 CIP involved getting $2.2 million in 


funding for the River Road Project through USDA; that is still in 
progress and is taking longer than expected.   Reports needed by 
online submittal process near completion.   


 Total Leaks for calendar year 2015 at 151 (target was 140). 
 System leakage at 21% (June 2016) (target was 21%). 
 Flood Inundation issues with El Bonita Well Field being worked on with 


the State Division of Drinking Water.     
 
FY 2017 Projections: 
 


 FY 2017 CIP (Old River Road) in design for construction in 
spring/summer/fall of 2017. Award of contract awaits completion of 
funding process - winter 2017?   


 Total leaks for calendar year 2016 at 140. 
 System leakage at 20%.  Continue use correlation equipment on 


regular basis to identify and fix leaks.   
 Continue use of automated map.  Become better at it; start making 


needed revisions.   
 Complete Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) in October 2016; 


use experience of Stage I water shortage in revision of UWMP.  
 Achieve resolution of inundation issues with El Bonita Well Field prior 


to rainy season (September 2016).  If physical solution is needed, 
have that completed prior to rainy season (November 2016).   


 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2016 Achievements:   
 


 Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2015.     
 Attended 2015 Flood Preparation meeting in November 2015   
 Attended meeting on wild fire preparation for Guernewood Park area at 


Russian River Fire Protection District Office.  
 


 
FY 2017 Projections: 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2015-2016  3 
 
 


 Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2016. 
 Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 


in 2016. 
 Continue efforts to communicate with local agencies re emergency 


preparedness.  
 Work with local efforts for specific plans (Wild Fire Preparation for 


Guernewood Park?)   
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2016 Achievements: 


   
 Field staff oversight of 2016 CIP. 
 43 in-house projects totaling 1562.5 man-hours (up from 33 projects 


and 980 hours).   
 First year of implementation of new MOU; it went well. 


  
FY 2017 Projections: 
 


 Continue staff training efforts. 
 Oversee completion of 2017 CIP construction when it starts. 
 Continue focus on in-house projects. 
 Participate in more webinars and workshops. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC AND GOVERNMENTAL 
OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2016 Achievements: 
 


 Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.   
 Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 Continued display in lobby that shows examples of pipes that are being 


replaced by capital projects – good public response to this.   
 Making effort to provide outreach with local Chambers regarding the 


drought response. 
 Making monthly reports to State on required drought response 


information.   
 2015 UWMP in progress; completion expected in October 2016.   


 
FY 2017 Projections: 
 


 Continue meeting summary.   
 Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 


on water-related issues.   
 Continue to look for ways to make website more useful. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2015-2016  4 
 


 Participate in statewide and regional drought responses.   
 Successful submittal of 2015 UWMP update.   


 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2016 Achievements: 
 


 Demonstrated use of correlation equipment.  
 


 
FY 2017 Projections: 
 


 Review sections of Policies and Procedures for revision. 
 Evaluate facility tour opportunities. 
   


 





		Item V-D - 2016 Annual Review

		Meeting Date: July 7, 2016 



		Item V-D.1 - 2016 Annual Review Report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 7, 2016  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May were 19,020 units (43.7 AF, Guerneville 
cycle) and production was 54.4 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production were 
higher (46.9 AF and 55.2 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage has increased a bit 
(21.2) but is still staying at historically low levels.   The reduction from January 2013, the 
State Board standard, was 31% which is similar to last May's (33%).  GPCD for May was 
64.5.  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference since 2008.   


 
2. Leaks:  In May we had 11 total leaks and spent 74 man-hours on them.   Those are more 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks and man-hours 
compared to May one year ago (20 leaks, 196 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and 
main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.       


   
3.  Russian River Flow:  It's time to switch over to Russian River flow. The rainy season is 


over; we did okay (right on the average of the past 8 years with a near flood event in 
December, but below the long-term average), and now it's time to look at how the River is 
doing.  Figure 3 shows historical rainfall compared to this year's rain.        


 
4. 2017 CIP:   This will be discussed in the Administrative Agenda.            
   


5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates reported for June. 
 
6. In-House Construction Projects: No in-house projects completed in June; several 


underway.  
 
7. Urban Water Management Plan: I am making progress on the UWMP.  The format is 


different with this update and I have adjusted to that.  My intention is to present some 
UWMP issues at the August meeting (Water Shortage Contingency Plan revisions, population 
projections, and perhaps others that I discover) and then have a draft UWMP presented at 
the September meeting, with approval at the October meeting.  Required noticing and public 
review may extend that time schedule, as well as possible, unknown-at-this-time 
interruptions from other events. 


 
8. Guernewood Park Fire Planning Meeting:  On June 17 I attended a meeting for 


developing a wild fire specific plan for the Guernewood Park area.  An issue that was brought 
up at the meeting was generator power for booster pumps in the area.  The Monte Rosa 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
March 3, 2016 
 


Boodster located on Old Cazadero Road does not accept generator power at this time.  The 
specific plan may want to include improvements to this booster pump facility in its 
recommendations.   


 
9. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart is revised for the coming fiscal year.  Please review it and 


let me know what should be added or subtracted.  
 
 
 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16


S
al


e
s 


an
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
e


rc
en


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
March 3, 2016 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2016 Compared to Earlier Years, 
2009-15 Average and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated June 27, 2016


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2000-08 Avg


2015


2016


09-15 Avg


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: July 7, 2016 



